PHARMACEUTICAL SOCIETY OF SINGAPORE MINUTES OF THE 114th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD ON SATURDAY, 7th MARCH 2020 AT 2:00PM (VIA ZOOM WEB CONFERENCING)

Present: <u>President</u>

Quay Siew Ching, Irene

Fellow Members
Lim Mun Moon

Fellow/Life Members

Wu Tuck Seng

Ordinary Members

Chean Ning Wei, Tracy
Chew Wei Zhi, Grace
Chia Lai Kuan
Quek Chung Ling
Samuel Ng Wen Zheng
Shih Lee Chuen Vivianr

Chia Lai Kuan Shih Lee Chuen Vivianne Chong Jin Jian Tan Yong Koon, Corrinne

De Silva Justin Ignatiaus Tan Zhenyin, Joyce

Kng Li Lin, Grace Tiah Hui Xian
Lim Hong Yee Wang Aiwen
Lim Kai Kiong Yak Xin Ran
Ng Boon Khiang, Ivan Yap Kai Zhen

Ng Hong Yen Yong Pei Chean

Ng Kim Yoke, Jennifer Zhang Quan, Parry Oh Su Fen, Claudine

No. of voting members present: 26

No. of members voting by proxy: (See appendix 1)

1 Quorum

1.1 A total of 16 voting members were present at 2:01pm. Hence, the meeting was adjourned for 15 minutes. The Honorary Secretary, Ms Tiah Hui Xian called the 114th PSS Annual General Meeting to order at 2.16pm.

2 Minutes of the 113th Annual General Meeting

2.1 There were no amendments made to the minutes. The minutes were proposed to be passed by Mr Zhang Quan, Parry and seconded by Mr Ng Boon Khiang, Ivan.

3 Financial Statement 2019

- 3.1 The external auditors engaged to audit the financial statements of the society for the financial period ended 31st Dec 2019 were satisfied that the financial statements were properly drawn up in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and represented a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Pharmaceutical Society of Singapore.
- 3.2 The Honorary Treasurer, Ms Ng Hong Yen, shared the highlights from the 2019 Financial Statement:
 - 3.2.1 Income: The net income for FY 2019 stood at \$699,200. The top three sources of income were from seminars and courses organized by PSS followed by surplus from the 29th Singapore Pharmacy Congress and from PSS membership subscriptions respectively.
 - 3.2.2 Expenses: The total expenses incurred for FY 2019 stood at \$489,704. We wrote off \$16,460 from membership subscriptions. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment cost \$60,044 and this included \$8,700 renovation costs incurred last year. Expenses incurred from seminars and courses and manpower in FY 2019 were \$118,412 and \$162,750 respectively.
 - 3.2.3 Hence, FY 2019 closed with a surplus before tax of \$209,496. We need to pay an income tax of \$22,897.
 - 3.2.4 In keeping with accumulating funds for future premises for the society, 80% of the net surplus before tax was transferred to the Building Fund. As at the end of FY 2019, the Building Fund stood at \$1,527,777.
 - 3.2.5 Mr Wu Tuck Seng asked if the amount written off for membership fees refers to actual write off or just on paper. Ms Ng Hong Yen explained that at the end of Jun yearly, PSS would have to write off 6 months of membership fees for those who did not pay their membership fees and terminate their membership. This is necessary for audit purpose.
 - 3.2.6 Mr Wu asked for the amount written off for membership for FY 2018.
 Ms Ng Hong Yen replied that it was similar to FY 2019 and reported

that \$12,000 was written off in FY 2018. He commented that PSS has to do something about this increasing trend.

- 3.2.7 Mr Wu also asked what we want to do with the \$1.5 million fund. Ms Ng explained that PSS council is looking out for a suitable property and we had drafted out some criteria/requirements. This property should be able to house PSS should we no longer have an office space. Ms Ng also explained that we want to take out as small a loan as possible in order not to burden the future generation. Hence, it is difficult to purchase and own a suitable property, considering the size of the property that we need, location, and the funds that we have and that it has to be a freehold property.
- 3.2.8 Mr Wu advised that with the current COVID-19 situation, this might be a good opportunity to look for a property as the prices may fall. The President of the 113th Council, Ms Irene Quay commented that we need a buffer of around \$800,000 for contingency and yearly expenses. Therefore with \$1 million, it is challenging to purchase a property. Hence, PSS council had placed our funds into fixed deposit at 1.78% interest rate for a year. Mr Wu expressed his understanding. Ms Ng also reassured that PSS council / financial advisory committee will continue to explore possibilities based on our risk appetite.
- 3.2.9 As there were no other issues raised, the financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2019 were accepted by the house.

Proposer: Mr Wu Tuck Seng Seconder: Mr Lim Kai Kiong

4 Updates by President of the 113th PSS Council

- 4.1 Ms Irene Quay welcomed all members to the meeting. On behalf of the PSS Council, leaders of the various chapters and committees, she would like to thank all the pharmacist volunteers for their contribution to PSS. Ms Quay then proceeded to give the house an update of all PSS activities and achievements for the past year.
- 4.2 She began with an update on PSS membership matters. In comparison to the number of registered pharmacists (as per published in the annual report by the Singapore Pharmacy Council), the percentage who are PSS members was maintained between 40% and 42%. In 2019, there was an evident interest in career development among pharmacists. Hence in response to that, both hospital and industry chapters had organised talks to educate our members on their career prospects (both in patient care and non-patient sectors). These events were well received and this demonstrated that our chapters were capable of understanding the needs of our members. Other activities were also organised such as social networking night and hiking event. The membership committee has engaged the Young Pharmacist Chapter (YPC) and a membership survey will be sent out later this year. This will allow us to better understand the needs of our members.

- 4.3 Next, she compared the membership figures in the various categories between FY 2018 and FY 2019. We had not received any nomination for fellow members in FY 2019. In FY 2019, we had a total of 7 new Life members, no change in the number of ordinary members, a decrease of 4 overseas members and a 5% and 59% increase in associate members and in student members respectively.
- 4.4 Ms Irene Quay proceeded to provide updates by the Financial Advisory Committee. This committee was set up in July 2017 and included PSS council members and members with experience in financial and/or property investments. PSS had convened an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) on 4 August 2018 to seek members' approval to form and appoint a Board of Trustees and to authorise PSS Council to obtain a bank loan for the purchase of a property for PSS. Though we had obtained approval at the EOGM, the PSS Council had received feedback from our seniors to reconsider and was advised not to take up too much loan from the bank as this would pose as a risk to PSS. The PSS Council also approached seniors for advice on donation and investment options. As mentioned earlier, though we have about \$1.5 million in our Building Fund, we had to keep aside around \$800,000 for contingency and operational needs. At that time, it was also not a buyer's market and concerns about property maintenance. Hence at the end of December 2018, the decision was to place our funds into fixed deposit while we continue to explore other options.
- 4.5 Ms Irene Quay then proceeded to update on the major activities by PSS.
- 4.6 The Community Chapter was chaired by Ms Carolyn Chan. The Community Pharmacy Health Champion Programme (CPHCP) ambassadors continued to reach out to the public, to educate and empower the public on chronic disease management specifically with regards to diabetes and hypertension along with lifestyle management. From November 2018 to June 2019, 174 patients were counselled and 844 patients were followed up. As a result of these follow ups conducted by pharmacists, 57.5% of patients had improvement seen in their diet, exercise time and medication adherence. The committee members were also active in media and public engagement. In November 2019, the committee worked with CNA lifestyle to educate the public on cough medications and the different preparations as well as on how to read product labels to check for drug allergy and ingredients. In such media engagement, the committee members / pharmacists are positioned as expert advisors providing professional input on the dangers of online purchase of health supplements.
- 4.7 The Hospital Chapter was chaired by Ms Tan Sock Hoon. They conducted a forum on postgraduate opportunities to raise awareness among the younger pharmacists on the postgraduate courses available. Senior pharmacists who had themselves undergone postgraduate programmes such as Doctor of Pharmacy (Pharm.D), Masters in Clinical Pharmacy, Masters in Public Health and Masters in Business Administration, were invited to share their experience at the forum. A Facebook page was set up to share latest news and/or guidelines relevant to hospital pharmacists. Ms Irene Quay encouraged members to promote and share this page with other members.

- 4.8 The Infectious Disease Special Interest Group (ID-SIG) was chaired by Mr Narendran Koomanan and Mr Ashley Lim. They also have been active in organizing a number of events for pharmacists such as a workshop on HIV and continuing pharmacist education session on tuberculosis.
- 4.9 The Industry Chapter was chaired by Ms Yak Xin Ran. They organized one career talk in November 2019 and co-organized the inaugural fundraising seminar for the Alfred and Lucy Wan Science Merit Scholarship with the Department of Pharmacy at the National University of Singapore.
- 4.10 The Public Education Chapter was chaired by Ms Lim Shi Min, May. This chapter worked on a few areas. One being the medication waste campaign whereby a few community partners were engaged in this discussion. However, after extensive discussion, it was decided that we should focus our efforts at the hospital level instead. This is because medication hoarding and waste usually occurs at the hospital. Hence, it might not be useful to have only one large-scale event to address this issue but the plan is to conduct a few roadshows instead.
- 4.11 The Public Education Chapter is also involved in the National Medication Information Workgroup. Their role in this workgroup is to vet through the medication information leaflets (MILs) for health literacy. It is to ensure that the contents of these MILs are easily understood and to harmonise terminologies used. Thus, in order to prepare the members for this role, they attended a workshop conducted by Dr Audrey Tan (Senior Consultant, Population Health, National Healthcare Group) on writing for health literacy and to familiarise themselves with the plain language guidelines.
- 4.12 The NMI workgroup was chaired by Ms Lim Woan Chyi and Ms Lim Kae Shin. It was formed in 2019 and consisted of representatives from restructured hospitals, community pharmacies, PSS public education chapter and its exofficio, supported by the Ministry of Health, National Pharmacy Programme Management Office (NPPMO) and iHIS. Currently, all MILs are done up at institution and/or cluster level. Hence, the purpose of this workgroup is to harmonise these MILs. They also worked with MOH to come up with 29 MILs related to diabetes as part of the MOH campaign on their "War against Diabetes". In addition, they have come up with a standardised template and have produced a total of 155 MILs. They plan to come up with at least 400 MILs to be uploaded onto HealthHub by end 2020 for access by both public and healthcare professionals.
- 4.13 The Professional Education Chapter was chaired by Ms Loh Chee Pheng. This chapter collaborated with both internal stakeholders (such as Industry, Community Chapters and YPC) and external stakeholder (Toxicology Society) to organise a wide range of Continuing Pharmacist Education (CPE) events to suit the varied needs of our members. Currently, there is a temporary discontinuation of CPE events due to the COVID-19 situation. However, we are exploring alternatives such as conducting CPE via Zoom Web Conference platform and a decision will be made by end March 2020.

- 4.14 The Young Pharmacist Chapter (YPC), chaired by Ms Nguyen Thi Hai Van. They organised the PSS annual appreciation dinner for our volunteers on 18 January 2019. They also planned to organise an appreciation dinner on end January 2020 but was postponed due to the COVID-19 situation. They also organised a YPC Leadership Forum on Information Technology in Pharmacy and hosted pharmacists from the Pharmaceutical Society of Sri Lanka who visited Singapore last year. Apart from pharmacy-related events, they also conducted non patient care related events as requested by members. YPC also developed Good Practice Guide for Handling of Patient Returned Controlled Drugs, which included a Patient Returned Controlled Drug Record Form and a Controlled Drug Disposal Patient Information Leaflet. This has since been implemented across different institutions and pharmacies in Singapore.
- 4.15 The PSS Intermediate and Long-term (ILTC) pharmacist workgroup was chaired by Mr Choo Yan Cheng. Continuing education sessions were conducted for fellow workgroup members to update and education them on vaccination and with regards to the vaccination schedules for the elderly. A learning needs analysis was conducted in 27 nursing homes for vaccine-related training. As a result, relevant e-learning modules were developed to address these gaps. Furthermore, the ILTC workgroup collaborated with the ID-SIG to drive national efforts to reduce antimicrobial resistance in nursing homes. They also engaged the regulatory authority to improve controlled drugs management in the ILTC setting.
- 4.16 The PSS Pharmacist Volunteer Service Workgroup conducted a Basic Pharmaceutical Course for palliative nurses from 16 July to 13 August 2019 with funding support from the Lee Foundation. This is a course conducted once every 2 to 3 years and this year a total of 36 participants enrolled into the course. This volunteer service was started in 1998 and since then pharmacists has been helping Dover Park Hospice (DPH) and Hospice Care Association (HCA) to sort out their medications, to ensure proper storage of medications, safe handling of medications and help to pre-pack medications for nurses to use during their home visits. However, since April 2019, DPH has hired a full-time pharmacist to oversee all the medication management and use including medication recycling g. Thus, with effect from 1 Jun 2019, this volunteer service had ceased. Moving forward, this workgroup will continue to advise DPH management on medication matters when needed in their own capacity.
- 4.17 The PSS Medication Therapy Management (MTM) workgroup was chaired by Ms Lee Jye Chyi and Ms Tran Anh Nhi. Two workshops were conducted last year in June and November 2019.
- 4.18 The Pre-registration Pharmacists Training Committee was chaired by Ms Kelly Chng. This committee is run by a group of dedicated preceptors from approved training institutions by the Singapore Pharmacy Council. The training programme is conducted from June to December yearly. At the opening ceremony, Ms Yong Pei Chean, 113th PSS Council Vice-President and A/Prof Lita Chew, Chief Pharmacist, MOH addressed the pre-registration pharmacists. Other speakers invited gave the pre-registration pharmacists an overview of

- the training programme and the competency standards and examination requirements by the Singapore Pharmacy Council.
- 4.19 The WSQ Certified Pharmacy Technician Course (CPTC) was helmed by Ms Yong Pei Chean and Mr Justin De Silva. The CPTC had received strong support from pharmacy managers. In 2019, a total of 24 candidates were enrolled for the 35th & 36th intake of the course. The team reviewed and revamped the CPTC programme due to requirements specified by the SkillsFuture Framework for Pharmacy Technicians. This new programme will be rolled out in the third quarter of 2020.
- 4.20 A major event for the Society was Pharmacy Week (PW) 2019. The committee was chaired by Ms Cheah Xin Yi Debra and Ms Waseemah Begam. The PW theme was "Own Your Health, Staying One Step Ahead' and was held at Kampung Admiralty. The event successfully attracted over 1000 participants and it also received good media coverage.
- 4.21 The 29th Singapore Pharmacy Congress was chaired by Ms Amanda Lee, was held on the 5 to 6 October 2019 at Suntec Singapore Convention & Exhibition Centre. The theme of the congress was "Educate, Engage and Empower for a Future-Ready Pharmacy".
- 4.22 PSS continues to build rapport and network with our international and regional associations such as the Federation of Pharmaceutical Association (FAPA), the Western Pacific Pharmaceutical Forum (WPPF) and the International Pharmaceutical Federation (FIP). Ms Irene Quay is currently the Vice-President of FAPA Bureau and A/Prof Chui Wai Keung is a representative of PSS at the WPPF. Ms Irene Quay also attended the FIP Council meeting last year.

5 Annual Report 2019

- 5.1 Mr Wu Tuck Seng commented on membership issues. He noted that there was no increase in ordinary members. PSS has a total of 1580 members of which we only saw an increase in student members. Thus, he felt that it is important to increase our efforts to try to increase our ordinary membership. Besides, there are more than 3000 registered pharmacists now. Hence, this means that PSS only represents 50% of pharmacists in Singapore.
- 5.2 Mr Lim Kai Kiong, an ex-officio of PSS membership committee reported that they are exploring at various initiatives for members. He also enquired if NUH pays for PSS membership fees. However, Mr Wu disagreed that institutions should be paying for professional membership fees. He felt that this is not the right thing to do and if one cannot pay \$120 for membership, then it reflects that there is no professional pride.
- 5.3 Mr Wu Tuck Seng proposed for the PSS membership committee to conduct a meeting with all pharmacy managers and to get a sense of how many of their pharmacists in their institutions are not PSS members. Mr Wu informed that he does not pay non-membership fees for their pharmacists when they attend PSS activities eg annual pharmacy congress. These pharmacists will then

- have to pay the difference in fees on their own. He encouraged PSS to gather the support from pharmacy managers.
- 5.4 Mr Lim Kai Kiong agreed and explained that the membership committee is engaging pharmacists from young. Mr Wu also suggested that we can provide a membership kit for new members and to have a session whereby PSS members can share what PSS has done for them.
- 5.5 Ms Irene Quay thanked Mr Wu for his suggestions and reiterated that PSS will be conducting a survey this year. She also appealed to Mr Wu, if the Singapore Pharmacy Council would be able to assist in our membership survey and that PSS need help to reach out to PSS non-members. Mr Wu requested for Ms Irene Quay to write in formally to the Singapore Pharmacy Council in her capacity as President of PSS and the purpose of the survey has to be clearly stated in the request. He will then seek clearance from the Singapore Pharmacy Council. Ms Irene thanked Mr Wu for his suggestions and agreed to do so.
- 5.6 Mr Wu Tuck Seng also commented on PSS finances. He noted that it was mentioned earlier that we had placed \$800,000 into fixed deposits. He proposed that we should split up our funds into different amounts and possibly in different banks. This is to avoid penalty and interest lost should we require urgent funds. Ms Ng Hong Yen, Honorary Treasurer informed that the \$800,000 was placed into UOB but because we felt that the bank was stable and we wanted to secure the 1.78% interest rate and only for 1 year. Ms Irene Quay reassured Mr Wu that PSS still have \$800,000 available for our operational needs.
- 5.7 Mr Wu Tuck Seng also enquired that based on the yearly increase in revenue, what is the outstanding amount that we need in order to purchase a freehold property. Ms Irene Quay mentioned that we are projecting that we need \$1.6 to \$1.8 million. Currently, we have \$1 million. Hence we need another 4 to 5 years in order to purchase a property. In addition, Ms Ng Hong Yen clarified that we need time to explore and perhaps take a small loan from the bank if needed. However, Mr Wu advised us against obtaining a loan from the bank due to the high interest rate and that we would lose money.
- 5.8 In addition, he also asked how much rental PSS is paying for our current office space at SMF building. Ms Ng replied that we are paying \$3,200 per month and hence we are spending around \$38,400 per year. He highlighted the opportunity cost lost had we purchase a property and not rented. Ms Ng reiterated that the main problem was that we have not found a suitable property as well. Mr Wu advised that we should only at most loan 20% of the property cost.
- 5.9 Mr Wu highlighted that in view of the current COVID-19 situation, we might need contingency plans for PSS organised courses, training and congress. This is important as he noted that these are one of the main sources of income for PSS. Ms Yong Pei Chean reported that the Nanyang Polytechnic's advanced diploma course is still running. Hence, she asked if Mr Wu would still send his Pharmacy Technicians for such courses. He highlighted that we might

be flouting MOH's policy. Thus, a possible solution might be to explore IT alternatives such as YouTube, Skype etc to assess participants for skills related courses.

5.10 There were no other issues raised with regards to the Annual Report and the house accepted the Annual Report 2019.

Proposer: Mr Lim Kai Kiong Seconder: Ms Lim Hong Yee

6 Nominations of Candidates for Election to the 114th PSS Council

6.1 Nomination papers had been received by the Honorary Secretary for the following 12 members to stand for election to the 114th Council.

Nominee's name	Proposed by	Seconded by		
Ms Corrinne Tan Yong Koon	Ms Chan Soo Chung	Ms Yong Pei Chean		
Mr De Silva Justin Ignatiaus	Mr Lim Kai Kiong	Ms Chua Kim Suan		
Ms Grace Chew Wei Zhi	Ms Tiah Hui Xian	Dr Camilla Wong		
Ms Grace Kng Li Lin	Ms Mariam Alkhatib	Mr Anson Lim Zong Neng		
Mr Ivan Ng Boon Khiang	Ms Mary Gan Lay Ling	Ms Ng Hong Yen		
Ms Lim Hong Yee	Ms Lim Wan Peng	Ms Mary Chong Kong Lian		
Mr Lim Kai Kiong	Mr De Silva Justin Ignatiaus	Ms Chuan Kim Suan		
Ms Ng Hong Yen	Ms Lee Soo Boon	Ms Claudine Oh Su Fen		
Mr Ong Kheng Yong	Ms Ng Hong Yen	Mr Lim Mun Moon		
Dr Shih Lee Chuen Vivianne	Ms Ng Hong Yen	Ms Yong Pei Chean		
Dr Yap Kai Zhen	A/Prof Christine Teng	Dr Chew Eng Hui		
Ms Yong Pei Chean	Ms Koh Yueting	Ms Fan Wei Shan		

- 6.2 All nominees were invited to give a brief introduction of themselves except for Mr Ong Kheng Yong who was absent. However, he had recorded a video in advance and this was shown at the AGM.
- 6.3 Nominations were proposed to be closed by Mr Lim Mun Moon, and Mr Zhang Quan, Parry.

7 Election of Council and Office Bearers for 114th PSS Council

7.1 Since there were 12 nominations for the 12 positions, there was no need to vote and appoint scrutineers. All nominated candidates were automatically elected into the 114th PSS Council.

- 7.2 The house proceeded to elect the President for 2020. There was 1 nomination made for President.
 - a) Ms Yong Pei Chean

Proposer: Ms Irene Quay Seconder: Ms Ng Hong Yen

- 7.3 As there was no other nomination made for President, Ms Yong Pei Chean was elected President of the 114th Council of the Pharmaceutical Society of Singapore.
- 7.4 In accordance with past practice, the house gave a mandate for the new Council to elect the office bearers among themselves.

Proposer: Mr Wu Tuck Seng Seconder: Ms Irene Quay

8 Appointment of Honorary Auditors

- 8.1 The Council thanked our current FY 2019 Honorary Auditors, Ms Oh Su Fen Claudine and Dr Wang Ai Wen for their time and efforts in vetting the FY 2019 financial accounts.
- 8.2 The house appointed the following members to serve as Honorary Auditors for the FY 2020.
 - b) Ms Tiah Hui Xian

Proposed by: Ms Yong Pei Chean Seconded by: Ms Irene Quay

c) Ms Joyce Tan

Proposed by: Ms Irene Quay

Seconded by: Mr Ng Boon Khiang Ivan

9 Address by the President of 114th Council

- 9.1 Ms Yong Pei Chean thanked everyone for nominating her as the President for the 114th Council. She expressed that this is an honour, huge responsibility and trust given to her. She will try her best and will require support from Council and mentors for advice in the coming year. In the coming year, she will continue to look for more opportunities to collaborate with other community partners in medication management service and standardisation of practice. One initiative that PSS has started was to review the antibiotics practice in ILTC. We hope to pilot the antibiotic guidelines that was drafted with ID-SIG this year.
- 9.2 In addition, we would need to step up on our delivery of CPE amidst the COVID-19 situation. We need to explore other possible avenues such as using

Skype or Zoom and may have to provide online CEs instead. We would need to upgrade our website capability.

- 9.3 With regards to public education, we already have a NMI workgroup. Besides that, we will need to look at how we can engage and collaborate with the NUSPS and with all chapters to synergise our efforts. We will continue to drum in the "Just Ask" pharmacist message that we have been using consistently for the past few years. This will allow the community and public to know our presence and for pharmacists to be of help to the community.
- 9.4 She mentioned that there is uncertainty due to COVID-19 situation whether ACCP2020 and Pharmacy Week can be held as planned. However, we will persevere and monitor the situation closely.
- 9.5 Last but not least, she is thankful and grateful for everyone who is passionate and to do a lot more for professional matters. She mentioned that PSS is currently having an event at the Tampines Hub. She felt that there was strong kampung spirit and materials were finalised within 2 weeks. She expressed that she loves the PSS Motto which is not for self but for others. She hopes that we can continue with this spirit.

10 Recognition and Appreciation

10.1 Ms Yong Pei Chean thanked Ms Quay Siew Ching Irene, Ms Chean Ning Wei Tracy, Ms Tiah Hui Xian and Mr Zhang Quan, Parry for their contributions to PSS and they will be stepping down from PSS Council.

11 Any Other Business

- 11.1 No notice had been received by the Honorary Secretary of any other business for discussion.
- 12 There being no further business, the meeting ended at 3.41pm.

Minutes recorded by:

Dr Shih Lee Chuen Vivianne Assistant Honorary Secretary

113th PSS Council

Confirmed by:

Ms Quay Siew Ching, Irene

President

113th PSS Council

Vetted by:

Ms Tiah Hui Xian Honorary Secretary 113th PSS Council

Pharmaceutical Society of Singapore 114th Annual General Meeting 7 March 2020

List of Proxy Voters for Election of Council

Appendix 1

S/N	Full Name	Membership	Proxy For	Membership
1	ONG JIA MIN, JOY	13242	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
2	RACHEL LIM RUI QI	13139	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
3	LEE CHIAWLI	12837	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
4	LIM XIN HUI	12587	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
5	TAN YIN YIN	10607	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
6	TAN MING MING	11438	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
7	RESHMA LHODE	11785	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
8	MARIE CHEN LI WEN	13250	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
9	LIN FANGYUN	11435	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
10	YANG CHENHUI	13220	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
11	WONG KENG FAH, FLORENCE	10675	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
12	TEO YI LIANG	13792	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
13	ROSALES ROMAN LESTER ESPLANA	12135	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
14	HUANG PEIEN, ESTHER	11523	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
15	TAN HWEE JUN	11792	CHEW WEI ZHI, GRACE	11742
16	LIM WAN PENG	11199	LIM HONG YEE	11113
17	CHIN HUI MIN, VIVIAN	13024	LIM HONG YEE	11113
18	CHONG KONG LIAN, MARY	10164	LIM HONG YEE	11113
19	CHIONG SIEU HONG	10982	NG HONG YEN	11380
20	KUAN CHIN HUA	12432	NG HONG YEN	11380
21	LEE SOO BOON	10336	NG HONG YEN	11380
22	CHONG MUI FONG	11875	NG HONG YEN	11380
23	LIM CHAI HUANG JANICE	10069	QUAY SIEW CHING, IRENE	10936
24	LOH CHEE PHENG	11417	QUAY SIEW CHING, IRENE	10936
25	LIM JOO CHYE	10360	QUAY SIEW CHING, IRENE	10936
26	LIM KAE SHIN	13604	QUAY SIEW CHING, IRENE	10936